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BENJAMIN ABBOTT HURON

Benjamin Abbott Huron, an early settler in Hendricks County, was born 31 December 1811
near Red Lion, Warren County, Ohio. He was the youngest of ten children, and when he was
little more than a year old his father was killed in an accident. He grew up on his wid-
owed mother's farm, and shortly after she died in 1831, moved to Hendricks County, Ind.
(I was told by my father that Benjamin A. changed the name further from Hurin to Huron
because of a bitter disagreement with an uncle in Ohio over some property. His brother
Seth, who also moved to Hendricks County, did not change the spelling).

In Hendricks County he "entered land from the government" (my unverified notes list

SW 1/4 Sec 11 Twp 15 R 1 E - 5 Nov. 1831; E 1/2 SW 1/4 Sec 2 Twp 15 R 1 E - 13 Nov. 1832;
SW 1/4 Sec 26 Twp 16 R 1 E - 11 Oct. 1833; and that at one time he owned two other tracts
which he did not patent). He married 10 Dec. 1835 Katharine Harding, who had come with
her parents Aaron and Hannah Harding from near Campbellsville, Ky. to Hendricks County in
February 1834. (Her father owned slaves in Kentucky, but disliking slavery set them free
and moved to Indiana). Benjamin and Katharine Huron began their married life in the
forest near Avon, building a log cabin in the center of the same 80 acres on which their
later home stood up to modern times. In a letter dated 5 Dec. 1935 their daughter A. Kate
Gilbert wrote to her niece Edith H. Prentice: "The young woman just past 20, and the
young man three weeks short of 24! And they went courageously and hopefully into the
forest - built their cabin - grubbed out the roots of trees - burned the brush - and gave
life to ten children! On the inside of the cabin home was the cooking on the hearth in
front of the roaring, hot fire; carding, spinning, and weaving of wool - knitting of
footwear for the pattering feet, cutting and sewing with a needle the cloth woven by one
pair of hands - by the light of a tallow candle, or a wad of cloth tied around a button
and sunk in a saucer of lard. I was the last one born in the cabin. The day I was six
weeks old they put the stuff into a wagon, and moved into the "big new house" a quarter
of a mile away, on the road. You see I remember well! Tom, Mary and Will were born in

the "new house". At the age of five years their firstborn "went away to be with God".
= = — - - They buried that first child in 1841, and not until 1926 - eighty five years
later - did the first break come in the ranks of "the nine". ~ - - — -~ Only two of us
remain:"”

Benjamin A. Huron donated a corner of his land for the first school building, and taught
there for a few years. He was active in church and educational affairs, and held various
township offices. Katharine Huron was a strong, active noble woman who was widely known,
respected and loved in the community. This was a very close-knit family, but a breakfast
one morning in 1866 was destined to be their last meeting all together. On that day some
left home for their own careers, and eventually they were widely scattered. 1In later
years there were reunions or picnics on the old farm, notably in 1885 (Golden Wedding),
1893, 1%02 and 1907. The picnic 9 Aug. 1893 was attended by about 300 people from near
and far, and it was estimated that two thirds of them were related to the family. At

the time of the reunion 7 Aug. 1902, shortly before Katharine Huron's death, she had
living 9 children, 22 grandchildren, and 10 great-grandchildren; of the 41 descendents
at that time, 30 were present at the reunion. In later years "the nine" and their

{continued on other side)
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O WHOL: IT IAY CONCERN

Be 1t known thet on the 23 day fo February 1888 I, R. P, Harper, coroner of Hendricks Co.,
Ind. being duly notifyed of a men geting killed at Avon by a freight train & when I ari-
ved ther I found that B, A, Huron had been killed by freight trzin No 43, I at once went
in to a thorough investigetion by the examination of the folowing witnesses:

H, 3. Shipman age 30 being duly sworn says: I reside at Indianapolis. I am Conductor on

No. 43 freight. Ve passed Avon about 11:30. I was not awere of an esccident till we
stopped. I did not know what we stopped for +ill engineer told me., We were rumming about
20 or 25 miles an hour. We heard no signale-sometimes we hear and sometimes we can't on
account of rattle of train. I was in the caboose at the time of accident, I knew of no
accident until we stopped. When we come to station I saw the 0ld gentleman in the room
on bench. I recon we was here about ten or fiften minutes. We had to get out of way of
fast train. We seen he wag in hands of friends,who would teke care of him, He was not
dead at that time, The only thing that I could see was the wound on right elbow and a
glight discoloration on forehead. I did not hear him speak, I did not think he was
dangerously hurt., Ve stopped caboose on the other side of bridge., I did not see the
nail matter, I heard engineer say he did not see him until he was almost a foot from him

an caught him on elbow and wheeled him eround against the fence.

The fireman said he was quiting in a fire and the engineer was on this side right side
couldn't see him unless he had been on the track some time on coming across the track
the engineer could not see him until he got on his side of engine. It is the engineer's
duty to blow the whistle and fireman's duty to ring the bell, The fireman couldn't ring
the bell and put in a fire at the same time, If we had heard the whistle when he first
called for brakes, we could have sitopped the frain before the engine got to the tank.
The bell rope is comected on right side of engine cab, an in case fireman is putting
fire and can't ring bell, the engineer can ring the bell without moving off his seat,
This accident happened on 234 of Peb, 1888 H. 8. Shipmen

Inoch Sluther is my neame, I am 47, Being duly asworn testifies as follows: I reside at
Indianapolis & Brightwood., I em en engineer. No. of our train is 43. I think we passed
Avon about 11:30. I kmew of an accident while passing Avon. We struck an old gentlemen
by cattle guard, I think he was trying to cross the track, I don't think I was over 2
or 3 feet from him when I first saw him., Ve were rumming 20 or 22 miles an hour. I was
looking out at vindow on right side, I whistled the proper signal and the bell was
ringing when I shut off engine. I saw him fall. He seemed to meke a quick motion side-
wase to get off the ties. Ve run below the tank into the hollow., Ve stopped train as

quick ag we could., Ve had heavy trsin and dovm grade., Ve backed back to




no

station. The injured man was in depot when we came back, I didn't think he was badly
injured, I d4id not hear him speek., I did not see the man reading when he was hit.

I did not see any mail matter on ground or in office. Our speed was about the usual
speed at this place. We were about east of swiltch when signal was given and about two
or three hundred yards east of crossing. I think the brakeman was ringing the bell,

He begun where I whistled and rung till after we passed the gtation. The fireman was
putting some coal in. I didn't see the man's hands., It was almost an instant from
time I saw him till engine struck him, VWhen I first seen him, he was standing still
on ties and then made a quick motion to get off. He was about second or third tie east
of cattle guard. I think we struck him on elbow with pilot beam. We stopped before
we got to the cut across the creek caboose just over bridge. I didn't see any mail
matter. I shut off steam as soon as I seen him and whistled for bresks, I hadn't
shut off steam before I saw him, Encch Sluthour

liy name is M. C. Young, Being duly sworn testifies as follows: I am 33. I am brake-
men., I reside at Brightwood, Ind. I was on train 43 yesterday the 23. I think we
passed Avon about 10:20 or 10: 30 maybe a little later. I think we were running about
20 miles an hour. I am head breakman, I heard engineer blow whistle about east end
of switch and commence ringing bell about same time, about 50, 60, or 100 yerds from
crossing. It is the engineer's business to blow whistle. The fireman's business is
to ring the bell, but ywhen he is busy putting in fire the engineer rings it., I was
ringing bell when we passed through Avon . The engineer blew the vhistle, train
running about its usuzal speed through here. I did not see any accident. Idid not see

the man who was injured, I was looking back at time to see if train was connected.
Engineer said he had struck a man at seme time he called for brake. We run west just

below the water tank before stopping. Ve then backed to crossing. I did not come back

to depot. I did not see the man that was struck at 211. I didn't come into the room
after we czme back. I have been on this road since last June. As far as I know the

proper signals are always given when we come to crossings.

T did not see any mail matter. I did not talk to Dr. Huron at Danville. The bell
begun ringing at east end of switch and continued until we called for brakes. We were
using some stesm but not a full head of stemm--as mch as usual on dowm grade. The
fireman was puting in fire when we struck the man, It is no one's duty to watch ahead
on left side of track when fireman is busy. I did not see the man reading when he

was struck. . C. Young

Albert Kathers being duly swoin testifies as follows: My name is Albert Mathers. I
am 19 years old. I reside at Mattoon, Ill, I am firewan. I have been on this road

7 months the llénext month. I was on No. 43 at time of accident, Yesterday was 23d.




We passed through Avon about 11:30 o'clock yesterday, train was running about 20

miles an hour. The proper signal was given before we reched Avon, Signal was given
about east end of switch, about 200 yards I guess, from crossing, The brakeman rung
the bell. The engineer blew the whistle, I was putting fire when we crossed com—
menced about mail stand I saw no one on track and knew of no accident., We came back
to crossing and then went on nearly to Gale before I knew of an accident. I was on the
engine all the time. It is about three miles to Gale. We had gone two or three miles
before I knew of an aceident., I run the engine back to crossing. I got a
signal from engineer to back up and no one was on the engine with me but head brake-
man, while backing up. We were all three on engine until engine slowed up so engineer
could get off. He got off on west side of bridge. The brakemsn and I rode back
together on engine untill caboose come io crossing. After we left the crossing the
brakeman stayed on top of cars, when engineer shut off and called for bralke he
hollowed something to brakeman I did not understand him., I never heard anything as to
vhat was the matter., I asked the brakeman ftwo or three times and he said he didn't
know, The brakeman told me we had struck somebody after we had stoped across the
bridge, before we backed up to the crossing. I stated before that I knew nothing of
the accident until we got nearly to Gale. I can't very well explain that now. The
ingineer and I rode together till the ingineer got off the engine beyond the bridge.
The ingineer said nothing to me but to watch the injecter. Coming back to the

station the brakeman come onto engine a couple of times and put in fire and the rest
of the time he was on top of the train, The brakemen was in two feet of me while put-
ting in fire., While he was on the ingin the breakeman said we had struck somebody.

The brakeman rung the bell before coming to crossing. He was setting on front part of
seat box on left hand side, I don't know which way he was looking. It is the five-
mans duty to watch ahead on left side before coming to crossings, I was not watching
ahead yesterday before coming to the crossing. A man can see both sides twenty-five
yards ahead of track no difference where he sits. I did not see or talk to Dr. F. H.
Huron at Danville yesterday. I did not hear any of the train men say the man was read-
ing when he was hit. I wish to state that the brakeman told me as we were backing up

to crossing that we had struck someone, A, Hathers

Mrs. A. J. Snider being duly sworn says she is 31 years. I reside in Avon, Ind,

saw a train pass about 11:30 Al on 23rd inst. I was standing in smoke house door

about 15 rods south of crossing in plain view of the train. Did not hear whistle until
after engine pased crossing. I did not hear the bell ring . The train was going west
If bell had rung or whistle had blowen I could have heard it. Train sometimes pass
without ringing bell or whistle blowing. I did not hear the train men say anything

about an accident. I saw Ben Buron laying on bench in depot after he had been struck




by train, I did not hear him speak. He seemed to be badly hurt. I saw him about
8 or 10 rods south of track. I saw papers sticking out of breast pocket of coat he
had nothing in his hand, It was before he reached the track Krs, A, J. Snyder

R, D. Snider being duly sworn says: 1 am 35 years of age. I reside in Avon, Ind,
Ccecupation is that of a blacksmith, Did not see any train going west on the 23
inst. about 11:20 A, M. but saw it when it backed up to depot. I was in my shop at
time 11:30 train passed --heard the whistle sounded sbout 120 rods east of crossing,
I did not hear the bell nor the whistle any more between that and crossing. I heard
whistle after engine passed crossing. I was not at work and could have heard bell if
it had been rung. Train sometimes passes without ringing bell or blowing whistle.

After train passed Nr, Ryan's son came dowvn and said & man was hurt, I went o
crossing and found Mr. Huron siting on north side of track Mr. Ryan holding him up.
His cap.was lying a 1ittle west of center of crossing about west wagon track between
rails. He was lying about one rod west of his cap on north side of track, MNr. Ryan's
wife and daughter were with him when I got there., I did not hear him speak, helped
cary him into depot. I saw mail matter in his pocket did not see any on the ground.
He secemed to be seriously hurt. I helped to take him home before he died. He died

about one hour and 15 min, after accideni occured,

The engineer told me the flag staff struck him on elbow. Ilir. John Ryan told me as we
were coming back from Hurons after he had died that he was reading a letter when he
was struck and paying no attention to the train, DMNr, Ryan did not go with us to Mr,
Hurons, but came after he was dead. Ir, Ryan stated that the letter was from his
wife., I saw Mr Hﬁron going to and returning from Post Office end saw nothing in his
hand. ' R. D. Snyder

E. T. Huron being duly sworn Says: I reside at Avon Ind and keep the post ofice about
40 rods south of Avon Station. B. A, Huron came to Post Office about 11:15 o'eclock

A Ii Feby. 23, 1888 and got the mail for his family. He got two newspapers and one
letter was from Huntington & Hoss, Indisnapolis and was addressed to Mr Huron's son,
S. T. Huron and had not been opened when he got it. IHe stayed in the office probably
5 min and started toward heme, A few minutes later Theard a west bound freight train
vhistle for breaks near Avon crossing. I did not hear a whistle or ringing of a bell
before or after that. If there had been I could have heard it. I did not see the
acecident, MNr. John Ryan told me that he had a letter or paper or something in his hand
and that he looked up and spoke and then resumed his reading. The reason that the
letter was from Huntington & Hoss was from their advertisement on the envelope. This
morning Feby 24-88 1 heard a freight train pass without whistling although the bell
rang., E., T. Huron
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TLizzie Huron being duly sworn says: Her age is 31 years, ©She resides at Avon, Ind
about 40 rods south of Avon Station, I was in the room back of Post office about
11:30 Al Feby. 23, 88 with doors toward Railroad cpen. I heard the freight trzin pass
and heard the whistle for breaks near Avon crossing. I did not hear the whistle or
hear the bell ring before oxr after that. If vwhistle had been blovm or bell rung‘I
could have heard it.

This morning, Feby. 24 I noticed a freight train pass without whistling although
the bell rung. Lizzie Huron

Louisa Barker age 48 years being duly sworn says: I reside at Avon Ind. about 120
feet south of Avon station was in my siting room on Feby 23 188 at about 11:30 AM
and heard a freight train pass going west I did not hear it waistle or hear the bell
ring.

Just & few momenis before the train passed I saw B. A. Huron going north toward the
Station and not more than 75 yds from it. He had nothing in his hand but I saw a
newspaper sticking out of pocket of his coat. Wnen the train passed my daughter
called to me "Somebody is Killed., I hurried to the crossing and saw Mr, Huron lying
on morth side of track and west side of county road, He was soon carried into the
depot and laid on a bench and there I saw a newspaper £231 out of his coat pocket onto
the floor. I heard John Ryan say that Mr. Huron was reading a letter. I know thatl
some trains pass the crossing here without whistling or ringing bell,

Louisa Barker

Jennie Barker age 19 years being duly sworn says: I reside at Avon, Ind. about 120
feet south of Avon station and across Ry tracks from gtation. I was in the kitchen
Feby 2% 88 at about 11:30 AM end the door next to the R. R. was open. I sav a freight
train pass going west and when its engine was near Avon crossing I heard it whistle for
brakes. I did not hear the whistle nor hear the bell ring before this time. I think
it was past the crossing when it whistled for breaks, After the train passed I saw Nr.
Ryan holding Mr. Huron's head up and I called to lia, that somebody was killed

Jennie Barker

Sarah Barker 22 years old being duly sworne says: I reside at Avon about 120 feet
south of the railroad track and about 9 rods east of the Co., road. I was in my sitting
room about 11:30 Ali Feby 23-88 and heard a {rain whistle about a half east of station
It was coming west. I did not hear it whistle or the bell ring any more untill the
engine got to Avon crossing when it whistled very shrill and loud for breaks. I

¥now thet trains do sometimes pass this crossing without either whistling or ringing




the bell, Afier the truzin passed I saw Mr, Ryzn holding lr, Huron's head up and

ran over there and Mr, Huron's cap was lying near the center of wagon road just

north of R R track., MNr. Huron was lying about 15 feet west of his cap., After he was
carried into depot I heard him say "Rais me up". I heard Mr. Ryan say that when Mr.
Huron passed him he had & paper in his hand and spoke to him and then went on with

his reading. After the train had backed up and gone again I saw Mr., Ryan with a letter
in his hand which he said belonged to Mr. Huron and he supposed was from his wife.

The letter hgg/%ggg opened on the gide. Nr. Ryan took it ocut of the envelop and then
replaced it saying he did not want to read it. MNr. Snider, Mr, Ryan and his son car-
ried him into the depot. Sarsh Barker

C. A. Tracy being duly sworne sayes: I am 23 years old on Feby 25 1888 was at Mr
Jordon Barkers about 150 yds north of Avon Station of I & St L R R about 11:30 Al

I was siting in room facing railroad at that time a freight train passed andI did not
hear any signal by ringing of bell or blowing of whistle before reaching the crossing.
After engine passed crossing I heard sound of whistle did not know that any accident
had occured at that time. Was watching train as it came down toward the station and
if whistle had blown or bell rung I surely would have heard it. My residence is at
Whiteland Ind, Johnson Co. C. A, Tracy

John Ryan being duly sworne says: My age is 50 years, I have been section foreman
on the I & St. I R R for the last four years, On the 23 of Feby 1888 I was about

60 feet south main track and about same distance from County road at Avon Station.
This was about 11 or 12 o'clock when I saw train No 43 approaching from the east.
About 700 feet from crossing I heard the socund of the whistle and ringing of the
bell. At same time saw Mr Huron about 50 feet from main track walking north, I
spoke to him and nodded his head. He had in his hand a white paper and also paper
in right coat side breast pocket., Did notice whether or not he was looking at what
he had in his hand, I did not see any specticles, There was no obgruction on gide
track east of crossing., After irain passed saw Mr., Huron lying against the fence
about 10 feet north of north rail of main track. I was the first to get to him after
the accident.l raised him up and gave him some water. All that he said was, "Water"
I remember that ¥r Snider was the first to help, DbNir. Snider myself and two others
carried him into depot, don't remember who the other two were., I picked up & letter
and postal card lying near his cap in wagon road about 20 feet east of where he lay
against the fence. I put them in his pocket with newspaper. 1 think I put them in
the right side pocket. \Vhen we started to carry him in his mail all of his mail
fell out of his pocket. I picket mail up and spoke to lir. Snider to take care of it.
Some boddy carried it in and layed it on window. His cap was lying in center of
County road zbout 4 feet north of main track. Did not have any of the mail in my

hand after it was put in ticket office window, As soon as he was carried in I




went to telegraph for Cos, surgeon. 1 telegraphed first to roadmaster at Mattoon 1 then
telegraphed to Dr. Morrisee surgeon at Indianapolis, When I picked up the letter it

was torn open efter accident train backed up. I had no talk with any of the train men.
1 did not look to see what time it was when the train passed. The train went about half

a mile before stoping, about 25 minutes after accident the train backed up.

The railroad track is a heavy dovm grade from three fourths of a mile east of crossing
to a mile west of crossing. Train was going west and dovm grade at time of accident.

To the best of my judgment the train was going at thdrate of 18 to 20 miles an hour at
the time of the accident. When the train backed up Mr. Huron had been carried into depot.
1 don't know the names of any of the train men. Afier carrying lir. Huron into the depot
I sat down to write a couple of messages. Vhen I got the messages wriitten S. T. Huron
a son of the injured men arrived with a spring wagon. I helped put him in the wagon.
Before the injured man was taken away from the depot Dr, Ragan came about 20 min after
he was burt, stayed untill he was taken away and went away with him, I told some of the
boys to go for S. T. Huron I think it was my son that went. When S. T. Huron came with
spring wagon he had a bed in wagon. The trzin had been started away 20 or 25 min before
8. T. Huron came with the wagon., W. W. Barker is ticket agent at Avon station. He was
not at the station at the time of the accident, I wrot no telegraph messages excepi

the two above spoken of when the train backed up I did not see any of the train men

get off or on, I was busy vriting the messages at that time., I can't tell how long the
{$rain remained here., I paid no attention to that. My attention was all on the injured
man. L did not see any of the train men in the depot at any time that day. I did not
see any of the trazin off the train that day. I was alone on wright of way at work when
Mr. Huron passed before the accident. That was the first time I had seen Mr. Huron that
day. I was walking east at the time I saw him. He was walking north at that time., He
was nearly 100 feet from me vhen I first saw him, I onmly saw him while I raised my hend
to saluted him and he bowed his head to me.

Kr, Huron was in the middle of the Co. road going north and about 60 feet south of the
R R track. After the mail was picked up when we stzrted to move Mr., Huron and it was
dropping from his pocket I next saw it on shelf in window of the ticket office. I only
saw one letter postal card and newspaper. 1 don't know who any of the mail matier

was addressed to as I did not read the address on any of it. The news paper was not in
a rapper but loose. I did not examine the mail matter after it was laid in the ticket
office. No person saw lir. Huron at the time he was struck by the engine that I know of,
1T have not heared any say that they sew him at the he was struck by the engine, I do
not know what lMr. Huron was doing at the time he was struck. I have never told any
person what he was doing at the time he was struck., I did not kmow and couldn'{ tell
after the accident on that day worked aslong the track driveing spikes, tightening bolis




& ete., the next day I put in the same way except I went over to Kr. Huron's house
an hour or so efter he was taken home, When I got there he was dead and I assited

in washing and dressing his boddy. Iast night Feby 24 I went to Indianapolis about

6 o'clock on a call from a society The Irish American Club. I saw none of the
Indianapolis and 8t. Louis R R men I went to Indianapolis on train No. 8 a local
passenger train., I saw the trainmen of train No 43 that injured Mr, Huron yesterday
after dinner Feby 24. 1 saw four of the trainmen yesterday but don't know what their
names are or what duties they perform on train., I don't know what train they came

on but when I came home at noon they were sitting in the depot. I had no conversa-
tion with the {train men except to say how do you do and they replyed in the same
manner. I don't ¥now who was the first person was  that I heard say lir., Huron
was reading a letter from his wife at the time the trzin strueck him, I first heard
it in the depot but don't know it was that spoke it. It was before he was taken
away from the depot. I don't Ynow the names of any persons that made that statement.
I was paying attention to the wounded man., I diden't notice who made it., I have
never told any person that Mr, Huron was reading a letter from his wife when he wvas
struck by the engine. I know Dr. Reagan, I did not tell him that Mr. Huron was
reading a letier from his wife at the time he was struck by the engine. Neither did
I tell Thom Huron that he was reading a letter from his wife. I told him that he

had a white paper in his hand and a bunch of papers in his pocket when I first saw
him, I know Dr, F, H. Huron when I see him . I did not tell him that Mr. Huron was
reading a letter from his wife., I thought his wife was over at home and did not
know she was not till came back here after I helped dress the boddy - when I
returned from assisting in dressing Mr, Huron's boddy there was several women and
children on the platform and I heard them pass the remark that his wife was in Kansas.
That is all I know about it. I first saw Dr., F. H., Huron on the day of the accident
as he got off the freight train from the west an hour or so after the accident., I
sbtarted to go with Dr. Huron to Mr. Huron's house and went vith him about a quarter
of & mile., He walked so fast I could not keep up with him. I did not at the time

I was walking with Dr, Huron as above tell him at the time of the accident that his
father was reading a letter from his wife, I did not at that time mow that his wife
was not at home. I did not during the time that we were wgshing and laying out the
boddyof hir., Huron tell Dr. Huron, Dr., Ragan and Tom Huron at the time of the accident
Mr Huron was reading a letter from his wife, At that time did not ¥mow that his
wife was not at home. I did tell them that Mr., Huron had a white paper in his hand
at the time I saw before the accident. There was a white envelop on the letter that
I found in the road after the accident at the time I saluted Kr. Huron before the
accident he had not reached the R R right away., The R R right away extends south




of center of track 50 feet. At the time I saluted Lir. Huron there was no obsbruc—
tion whatever on the R R righaway between him and the freight train that I saw
coming. I can't tell what condition the envelopwasin when I picked it up. I was
runing at the time to get to the man who was hurt, I only saw that it was a letter
and a postal card, I grabed them up as I run and put them in Mr., Huron's pocket
without paying any atiention to them--I don't kmow which was on top letter or

postal card., Ny thought was all on the injured man and not what I had picked up on
the road. I never examined the letter afterward to see what condition the envelop
was in that the letter was in. I don't know the name of the conductor on the trein
that injured Mr. Huron. I have had no conversation with the conductor of that train
since the accident, HNone of the train men of fthat train went on the same irain with
ne to Indianapolis yesterday eavimning as I kmow of, I did not know any of them they
might have been on train without me kmowing it. I got my information from my time
card that gave me my information as to the Nc of the train that injured Mr, Huron.

I had time card in my pocket. I don't know whether the letter I picked up in the
road was sealed or open I don't know who got that mail from the depot. Dr. Reagsn
Mr, Snider and myself washed the boddy and dressed it. I have never told any boddy
that I heard any boddy say that Mr. Huron was reading a letter at the time of the

accident. Witness to mark. G. A, Guthrie

R, F. Harper Jobn x - Ryan

Bridget Ryan being duly sworne says. I am 47 years old I reside in depot building

at Avon station. I Mr, B. A, Huron after he was hit by train on 23 FPeby 88, I

heard the sound of whistle of the train that hit Mr. Huron About Mr, Guthrie's cross-
ing on his farm one half mile east of crossing at station. I did not heaf any other
signal after that either of whistle or bell, I have been acquainted with lMr, Huron

4 years and have talked with him never noticed that he was hard of hearing, After

the accident Mr, Ryan and myself were the first to get to him. I saw no mail matier
before he was carried into the depot some on handed the mail to me and laid it on
stand in my room. There was one letter postal card and paper and the letter was torne
open. Someone took the mail out of my room and I saw it in ticke office aftenvard.

I saw the train after it backed up and saw the train men get off and come in the depot.
I did not hear the train men say emy thing to any one in regard torthe accident. T

heard the engineer say yesterday that he never saw lir, Huron untill he was within a

few feet of him. Witness G. A, Guthrie Bridgett v Ryan

R. F. Harper her mavk




Katie Owens being duly sworne says: I am 20 years old. I reside in Avon withe lir,
Ryan my stepfather, I ¥now of the accident that happened ot Avon crossing on the
2% of Feby 1888. Accident occured atter 11 A M at that time I was washing, I saw
the train before it reached the station, I first saw the train between switch post
and mail rack. I herd the sound of the whistle about lr. Guthrie's crossing a half-
mile east of depot. I went out to where lir. Huron was lying before he was moved into
the depot. My step-father and my mother was there when I went out., I saw no mail
matter untill it layed on the ticket office window, Mr, Huron's cap was lying in
middle of R. R itrack and about middle of wagon road. I saw the train man after they
got off train they came in office. I do not know the names of any of the train men,
I did not hear any of them speak of the accident. The sound of whistle I heard half
mile or more eaqj/wgfgg%% ggearlurm'lrheard from the train. I was in the back yard
at the time I heard the whistle and remained there untill after the itrain had passed
and untill I heard that some one had been hurt, During all the time I was not more
than 25 feet from R R, track and I was in the open air. I did not examine the mail
matter untill a boy came for it in the aftermoon and I noticed that an envelope was
torne, The envelop seemed to be torne open on the gide,

Katie Owens
Airna Ryan being duly sworne says: I am 15 years old. I live at Avon with my father.
on Feby 23 1888 I saw an man that had been struck by a freight train,‘ At the time .of
Accident I was north of crossing about 75 yards from depot in county road. I did
not see any train untill it reached the crossing. I was comeing south toward the
depot. I did not hear the ringing of bell or sound of whistle before that time, When
I first saw the man he seemed to be trying to get out of the way of the train. I
could not see what had become of the man until I came dovm to track. I did not see
any mail matter when I first saw the man he was near the middle of the wagon road.
I did not see the train nor hear the train untili the engine was passed the depot.
I saw the man trying to get out of the way of train just a moment before I saw the
train when I saw the train it frightened me so I lost sight of the men untill after
the train had passed. I was comeing from lr, Bartley's store about a fourth of a
mile north of the depot and had heard no whistle from the train nor bell rung untill
after train had passed depot. I was acquainted with B. A, Huron and he was the man
that was struck by the engine. Amna Ryan
Othniel J. Huron being duly sworn says: that his residence is one mile east of Avon
Station in Hendricks County Ind., That his age is 57 years& his occupation a shoe-
maker, That he was working at his bench at the Post Office about 40 rods south of
the Avon Station on Thursday Feb.23 1888 at the time that the freight train passed




going west between eleven and twelve o'clock at the time that B, A. Huron was struck
by the train. That ne is positive that there was no whistle from the train,for the
Avon crossing untill the whigtle for brakes was sounded about the time that the
engine passed the crossing, neither did he hear any bell and that he can easily
hear the bell at the place he was working, when it is rung. That when he heard the
whistle for brakes he looked up and saw the train running very fast on the down
grade and with the steam and smoke all shut off so that it was making but little
noise., He did not learn of the killing until some time afterward. That he went to
the home of the deceased about three o'clock thalt afternoon, and that scon after
going there Dr., F. H. Huron asked him to go with him to the station and about the
time they reached the station Dr, Huron told him he wanted him to go with him and
stay with him to remember what was saild in regard to the killing, That they first
went to Mr, John Rysn's who is the section boss at the Avon Station, that XMr., Ryen
was not at home but that Dr. Huron asked Mrs. Ryan & the girls how this thing had
happened and Mrg., Ryan bagan telling about it and among other things she said that
"he was reading a letter from his wife when he was struck," Then Dr. Huron asked
her for the fhe letter, and she said she had given it to Ressie Hendricks, and Dr,
Huron asked her how many letters there were and she said "only one, " and that she
had given it to Ressie, Then Dr. Huron told her that the letter which Ressie had
brought home was not from Mr. Huron's wife but was a letter from Indianapolis to

S. T. Huron and not for his father, and that his father never opened anyone elses
letter in his 1life and could not have been reading it if he had opened it because
his spectacles were at home in the clock at the time he was killed. He then told
her that the train men had no doubt told her and her husband to tell that story
for them, but that it was false, and that they had murdered his father and were now
slandering him after he was dead by claiming that he had broken that letter and was
reading it and thereby lost his life, when they kmew it was false and that some of
them ¥mew who had broken open the letter, and that if anyone perjured their souls
by swearing such a slander as that on his dead father, he would prosecute them for
perjury to the bitter end. That the foregoing is the subgtance of what Drx., Huron
t0ld Mrs. Ryan snd her daughters. That she became very mch agitated and declafed
that she didn't know anything about it, that she heard some of them say so but
didn't know who it was, but that all she knew about the letter was that when she
got it to give to Ressie Hendricks it was broken open, but that she had not noticed

that it was so before. 0. J, Huron
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g, T. Huron being duly sworn according to law says: I am 37 years old, and reside
near Avon Indiana, by occupation a farmer, am a son of B, A, Huron late of this
place, deceased. Near 12 o'clock noon of Feb. 23, 1888 I received word that
deceasged was lying at Avon Station having been struck by a freight train on the

I & St. L. R. Re I hurried to station and found him inside of depot lying on a
bench and apparently unconscious. We removed him to a spring wagon, as carefully

as possible under the care and direction of Dr. J. S. Ragan and conveyed him to

his home about three quarters of a mile away and placed him on a bed. He lived only

g few minutes longer.

On the way home he spoke several discomected words and once said, "All by myself,"

indicating unconsciousness.

John Ryan section foreman at Avon told me just after the death that he met the
deceased just before being struck by the train and that he was at the time reading
a letier, that he afterward picked up the letter and put it away. I sent for the
mail matter that dropped from his pocket and two nevispapers and a letter were found,
The letter was from Mess., Huntington & Hoss Indianapolis and was addressed plainly
to myself and the envelope was very rudely torn open all the way across the top.
Father was careful in opening letters always opening them neatly at the end of enve-
lope., I never knew him to break open one of my letters. I never knew him to try
to read a lebter while walking along, He could not read & word without glasses,
and his spectacles were at home all the time he was gone, Father was almost

entirely deaf in his right ear, but ecould hear gquite well with his left one and I
have nobiced for years that when he heard a noise, he was confugsed to know where
it came from, and would look in several directions before he could locate the

noise, it seeming to appear always to come from his left.

He was struck on his right side, his right elbow being badly torn and his right
hip crushed, a piece of his coat on that side, more than a foot square was torn away;
1ikewise his pants were torn on the same side; I have often seen trains pass Avon
crossing without a tap of the bell or a sound of the whistle., The foregoing facts
lead me to believe that my father was killed by criminal negligence on the part of
the trainmen, they failing entirely to ring the bell before reaching the crossing
and that after they backed up they found my 1etter - unopened - and that they broke
the seal and conspired together to tell that he was reading in order o throw the
guilt off themselves. Seth T, Huron
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F. H. Huron, i D, being duly sworn says: I reside at Danville, Ind, am aged 48 years
and an by occupation a physician. I received a telegram on Thursday Feb, 23, 1888,
about 12:15 P. M, "PFather was struck by the cars, come quick," The messenger boy
told me thay were holding a trazin for me and would hold it untill I got to the depot,
James McCormick drove me to the depot & when I got there I saw two trainmen standing
and talking & watching me~-I went to them and asked them how soon the train would
start east. They answered "Ag soon as the fast train passes going west" & one of
them bagan talking about the "accident" at Avon and told me that Pather was not hurt
mach, that the flag staff had struck him on the right elbow and tore his coat sleeve
and cut the elbow a little but not much, I asked him how it happened, and he went

on to say that "he was reading a letter from his wife and didn't seem to notice them
untill they got close to him and then hurried off the track but didn't get far enough
so but that the flag staff struck him on elbow tearing his coat sleeve and hurting
his elbow some and whirling him around and throwing him down but that he didn't think
he was hurt mach, He repeated several of the statements during our short conversation,
specially the one as to "reading of the letter and not noticing them" and that he
"did not think he was much hurt.," He said they backed up as soon as they could stop
lest he might be worse hurt than they thought for and no one might notice him, but
that when they got back to the crossing he was already in a house and being taken
care of. He told his story so readily that I supposed him to be the engineer of the
train and 1o have seen what he pretended to be describing. Although I knew that
Pather could not read while walking, and that he was very careful of the cars, and
consequently knew the fellow was not telling the truth as to the reading, yet I
hoped he might be truthful as to the injury being slight , and didn't feel like
talking to him about the other statement. When I reached Avon Station, Mr. Jno., Ryan
told me that they had taken Father home and started to go with me. PFather's home is
a little over one half mile distant, As we walked I asked Ryan how much he was hurt
and he told me he thought he was not dangerously hurt and went on to tell me what
had happened repeating substantially the story which the {rain man had told me at
Danville about the reading of a letter from his wife and not noticing the train in
time to get out of the way. I asked him if he saw Father at the time he was struck
and. he szid "No," that Father had passed him and spoke %o him just before the train
came by, but that he knew Father to be so careful, that he didn't even think of him
when the whistle sounded for brakes just after it passed the crossing, but thought
they wanted to stop for something else, but that as soon as they passed he saw a cap
lying in the road and ran up there and found Father lying over by the fence and that
he sent for Dr. Ragan and others and also dispatched to Greencastle and to Indiana-
polis both for the company doctors, etec., and at this point we met a boy who said "He
is dead," and I hurried on leaving Mr, Ryan behind.




I found Pather lying on the bed in his room, dead, znd together with Dr. Ragan made
an examination of his injuries, We found a slighit bruize on the right temple, the
right elbow badly torn and the right illiac bone crushed and the bruized condition
extended from where the illiac bone was crushe@i/%ﬁgoig ggglgaggnd no fracture of

the spinal column but suppose there was concussion of the cord to such an extent

ag o cause the paralysis of limbs which Dr., Ragan said existed. Shortly after this
I t0ld my brother and sisters of the conspiracy of the train men to claim that he was
reading a letter from mother while crossing the track, and about this time Ressie
Hendricks came in with the mail which Father had with him when he was struck. The
letter which he brought was for my brother S. T. Huron and was from Indianapolis

and was roughly torn open lengthwise of envelope anu each one exclaimed, "Father
never opened that letter." We each called to mind how neatiy he opened his letters
across the end of the envelope and 2lso that the seal of a letter to any one of his
children was always sacred with him, that he would not even open a letier addressed
to Mother, which he kmew was written by friends to both of them, Wnile we were talk-
ing Sister Mary stepped to the clock opened the door and showed us Fatherts spectac-
les lying there in their usual place, so I know he could not have been reading
anything even if he wished to. VWhen I thought of the perfidy of the crime of which
I felt someone was guilty I determined to investigate the matter and started for the
place of the killing. As I passed out of the house I saw O. J. Huron and asked him
to go with me, We first called at Mr., John Ryan's at Avon Station but he was not

at home. I asked his wife and daughters how it happened and Mrs. Ryan began telling
about it. T determined only to ask questions, and listen but when she began telling
sbout Father being reading a letter when it was done, I asked her where this letter
was. She told me she had given it to Hessie Hendricks. I asked her how many let-
ters there were. She told me "one" then on the impulse of the moment I told her
Father never opened that letter, and having said so much I went on to tell her that
they had mirdered my father and wanted to gei out of it by accusing him of the crime
of opening a letter that did not belong to him and trying to read it while crossing
the R. R. track. And I told her that the trainmen had no doubt %old it to her and
her husband and asked them to say so, but that if anyone perjured their soul by
glandering my dead father by swearing to such a thing as that I would prosecute then
for perjury to the bitter end., She became very much agitated and declared repeatedly
that she didn't know anything sbout it. That she heard them say so. During the con-
versation she insisted that she didn't Mnow anything about the conditien of the
letter until she got it to give to Ressie Hendricks but that it was broken open then.
And that she didn't ¥now anything about who did it. The man who told me at Danville

that Pather was reading a letter from his wife wnen he was struck was the one who




claimed to be the conductor at his examination before the coroner., Feb. 24, 1888,
And 1 thought I knmew so while he was testifying but as he talked to me at Danville
just as if he had seen the whole of it and in his testimony stated so positively
that he saw or heard nothing of it, I was so dazed that I thought it might be one

of the others, until they were brought to testify. And the conductor had left so
soonn as he was through so I did not ask him any question on the witness stand as to
what he had told me at Danville. I know that my Pather was deaf in his right ear
end have often heard lhim say that every sound seemed to come from the left, and that
he always had to turn round and hear éy sound from both positions or see the object
before he could tell where it was, but he could readily hear ordinary conversation

with his left ear,

If the train was coming on the down grade to his right with the steanm shut off and
without sounding the whistle or ringing the-bell, Father would prebably not have
noticed it untill too late to save himself, F, H. Huron

John S, Regan being duly sworn testifies as follows. My name is Johm S, Ragan, I
am 38 years old. I am a practicing phycisian end reside at Avon, Ind,

About 11:45 o'clock on Thursday Feb, 23d I was sent for to come to Avon station to
see Lir, B, A, Huron who had been struck by a freight train and badly injured. I
found him propped up on some benches in depot, On examinationI found an exceedingly
weék and compressible pulse, Respiration I should think nearly normal as to number
but somewhat lebored and moaning at almost every breath., The lips were apparently
almost bloodless, face pale, considerable dilation of pupils, and in rather profuse
perspiration, He was entirely unconscious, so far as I could tell, At this time

I only saw external wounds on right side of face and temple, apparently bruising &
slight aﬁrasions on head and on right elbow which was badly lacerated and torn with
some of the bony proscesses of elbow broken off and protruding through the wound.
The joint proper was not entipﬁ%g destroyed. He could use both arms freely, which
he did a number of times, buﬁflower extremities were not moved in the leagt at any
time so far as my observation goes, indicating complete paralysis. I gave him

three or four teaspoonsful of brandy and water and a little later gave a small dose
of morphine and had means used to warm him if possible but all to no purpose.

About 12:20 or 12:30 at the request of his son, 8. T. Huron, we removed him to his
home, about half a mile away. I gave him some brandy before starting. After reach-
ing his home I attempted to administer some whisky in the hope of sustaining life a
little longer but saw it was useless and desisted from further atempts to revive him.
He died about 1 o'clock possibly a little later making it about an hour and a half




from time of accident till death occured, Mr, Huron was irrational from the time I
saw him until his death but he talked incoherently congidersbly at different times.
I, in connection with Dr. F, H. Huron, examined the body after death and found the
tissues ebout right hip and the back very much bruised and discolored. The
immominate bone on right side of pelvis hip bone had sustained a comminuted or
miltiple fracture. I could not detect positively any fracture of the spine but in
ell probability such a fracture existed when we take into consideration the nature
and force of the shock together with the symptoms of paralysis and visible external
injuries over the spine in lumbar region. I arrived at depot before the train that
injured him, backed up to station. John Ryan, section foreman on I & St. I R. Road
assisted in washing and dressing the body of deceased and I heard him say nmore than
once during that time that Mpr., Huron was reading a letter when he passed him (Ryan)
Just south of crossing. That was the first time I heard of the letter.

John S, Ragan, M. D,

After a thorough investigation of the above evidence I adjouge that A. B. Huron came
to his death by a partisl neglect of men on freight train No 43, by not being in full
discharge of their duty as manedgers of saild train and that A. B. Huron unthoughtly

crossing the track was run against causing his death,

A. B. Huron deceased Feb., 23, 1888 was 76 years old weighed 130 1b, Blue Eyes, dark

hair, grey Beard, about 5 £t 9 inches height. R. F, Harper Coroner of
Hendricks Co. Ind.

Filed Mch 1, 1888
¥. R, McClelland
Clexk




